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1. Name of Property
historic name Moorestown Historic District

other names/site number

2. Location Main St. between Zelley Ave. and fork at Camden Ave.,

street & numberportions of Church St., Prospect St. & High St., blockdNA not for publication

city, town Moorestown /roughly bounded by Mill St., Oak & Chestnut Avéilvicinity

state  New Jersey ~ code 034 county Burlington code 005 Zip code 08057

3. Classification

O\{\gnership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
private ] building(s) Contributing Noncontributing
public-local district 351 66 _ buildings
] public-State [Isite 4 sites
public-Federal [ structure structures
[ Jobject - objects
355 66 Total
Name of r%a}id multiple property listing: _ Number of contributing resources previously
listed in the National Register ___9

4. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hereby certify that this
nomination [_] request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.

In my opinion, the froperty @ meets oes not meet the National Register criteria. D See continuation sheet.
. ~ 4 ~ & et _, Ax ’ 11/28/89
Signature of certifying official : Date

Assistant Commissioner for Natural & Historic Resources/DSHPO

State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property Dmeets Ddoes not meet the National Register criteria. L__]See continuation sheet.

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification i he-
1, hereby, certify that this property is: ~irgered ;;e;istﬁﬁ
entered in the National Register. uatﬁiona -

[:] See continuation sheet.
[_—_]determined eligible for the National /4
Register. D See continuation sheet.
Dde!ermined not eligible for the
National Register.

s/
/ /

Dremoved from the National Register.

[Jother, (explain:) . /

’Zlﬁgqa\ﬁe of the Keeper Date of Action




6. Function or Use

Historic Functions (enter categories from instructions) Current Functions (enter categories from instructions)
Domestic Domestic
Commerce/Trade Commerce/Trade
Social Social
Industrial Religion
Religion
7. Description :
Architectural Classification Materials (enter categories from instructions)

(enter categories from instructions)
foundation ___Stone

Late Victorian walls Wood
Late 19th/20th century revivals Brick
Mid-19th century roof Asphalt
other Wooden_porches

Describe present and historic physical appearance.

The Moorestown Historic District encompasses the commercial and early suburban residential core of a 7.1-
square-mile town located within 15 miles of Philadelphia. The district is generally T-shaped, conforming with the
east-west path of Main Street, Moorestown's historic road to Camden, and extending northerly to the pre-railroad
area of settlement along Second and Third Streets and further north to the "Company Grounds," the township's
first major speculative development. At the heart of the district, Main Street contains the commercial, religious,
and civic buildings of Moorestown interspersed with generations of residences. The houses here and throughout
the district represent a full spectrum of architectural styles found in the approximately 250-year period of
significance. While the majority of these dwellings are the works of builders and local craftsmen, several
imposing residences from the late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries can be attributed to Philadelphia's and
Camden's prominent architects.

Moorestown lies along a two-mile-long ridge in the southwestern corner of Burlington County, the same ridge

- along which the Old Salem Road was laid out in 1682. That road, which followed the general course of today's
Main Street as well as Indian trails, was replaced by the present road from Mt. Holly to Camden (Main Street) in
1794. Prior to the establishment of Main Street, the second principal road in the district, Chester Avenue to Third
Street, was surveyed in 1720 and known as "Meeting House Lane" or "The Great Road.” These roads, with the
addition of Second and Third Streets in the 1840s, contain the district's pre-railroad era areas of settlement mixed
in with later development. North Moorestown -- Chester Avenue north of Third, Central, and Oak -- was not laid
out until the mid-1860s. After a period of land speculation, these streets were developed into a dense
concertration of residences between the 1880s and the First World War.

The district contains a full range of building types: commercial, religious, civic, social, industrial, and residential,
houses being the predominant resource. The scale of the district is characteristically two to three stories in height;
buildings are primarily of frame, brick being the second most prevalent building material. Within the district,
four resources are already listed in the National Register of Historic Places: the eighteenth-century Smith-Cadbury
mansion at 12 High Street; the Romanesque Revival-fronted Town Hall at 40 E. Main Street; "Breidenhart,"
Samuel L. Allen's 1890s medievalized mansion at 255 E. Main; and the Moorestown Friends School at Main near
Chester. A fifth National Register property, the Perkins Memorial, abuts the district at its western boundary.

The commercial core of the Moorestown historic district extends along Main Street roughly between Chester
Avenue to the east and Union Street to the west. Adding distinctiveness to this streetscape is the large number of
rcsxdengcs ipterspcrscd between stores, churches, and civic and social buildin gs. The commercial buildings range
from mid-nineteenth-century houses altered for commercial use to high-style 1920s banks. The adaptive reuse of
residences into stores has been a common trend along Main Street. Buildings such as the Italianate houses at 11-
13 and 15-17 E. Main Street are masked behind modern storefronts as is the mansarded dwelling at 25-27 E. Main
Street. Many of the large homes on Main Street, which primarily date from the second half of the nineteenth
century, have also been given over to professional uses with minimal alterations such as the Shingle Style house
at the southwest corner of Church and Main. Accompanying the residences renovated for commercial use are
buildings erected exclusively for commercial use such as 135 E. Main Street, a mid-nineteenth-century Greek

[x_-}See continuation sheet




_DEC 7 1900

NV

8. Statement of Significance

Cerlifying official has considered the significance of this propetty in relzation to other properties:

D nationally D statewide locally

Applicable National Register Criteria [X]JA [ 18 [XJc [Jo

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) [ JA [JB [Jc [[Jo e [OF [Je VA

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance Significant Dates
Exploration/Settlement ' c.1720 - 1940
Architecture 1840
Commerce c.1867

Communi ty Nevel opment

Cultural Affiliation

N/A
Significant Person Y Architect/Builder
N/A Various

~

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.

"One of the most thriving'as well as one of the most charming places of rural residence to be found within a long
Jjourney from Philadelphia,"1 Moorestown is a community significant for its rich history and diverse architecture.
From early settlement through suburbanization, Moorestown has witnessed various stages of development that
transformed it from one of Burlington County's agricultural communities to one of Camden's and Philadelphia's
most desirable suburbs. The town's early heritage, as well as its ongoing maturation, are clearly visible in the
streets of the district which contain the well-preserved landmarks of local history. These landmarks not only
describe local history, but also document a broader trend in American architectural history. The Moorestown
Historic District provides a pictorial history of the nation's domestic architecture, displaying excellent examples of
the major stylistic movements from colonial to modern times.

Moorestown, originally a village in Chester Township, Burlington County, was first settled in about 1682. The
early settlers were Friends who located in the vicinity of springs near a ridge along which the village was to grow.
These settlers and their Native American predecessors relied upon the upland wooded ridge for the diversity of
natural foodstuffs and the availability of water. The vast tracks of hardwood timbers and native sandstone were
also to play an important part in settlement patterns by providing ample materials for shelters and other structures.
The eastern end of settlement developed by the Friends on the south side of Rancocas Creek was called
"Chestertown" and the western end, established along Indian Spring to the south of 286 W. Main Street, was
named "Rodmantown." The village center of Moorestown is unusual in that it began at the eastern and western
springs, then advanced toward the middle.2 The earlier names were dropped for "Chester" and then
"Moorestown" in honor of Thomas Moore who came here in 1722. By the end of this first century of settlement,
the turnpike from Mt. Holly to Camden had been laid out along what became Main Street, and Chester Avenue or
"Meeting House Lans" was opened near the Friends' 1700 log meetinghouse (demolished) and burial ground, an
aesthetically significant open space. The village's eighteenth-century development largely resulted from the efforts
of Thomas Moore, the first tavernkeeper and realtor, who in 1732 purchased 33 acres on the northern side of
Main Street. This land, extending from the Friends burial ground at Chester Avenue to Locust and northward to
the mic_ldlc of Second Street, was subdivided and sold for residences and businesses. One of these early
enterprises was Moore's inn at the northwest corner of Main and Union Streets. John Cox's tavern, east of
Chester Avenue, was the oldest hotel in the eastern end of Moorestown. These two taverns and the Friends'
Meeting House provided centers for the village's activities.

Sawmills and tanneries were among the first industries as was farming, particularly fruit-raising. These industries
prospered well into the nineteenth century, with the improvement in road transportation augmenting the shipment

[ZlSee continuation shest




3. Mazjor Bibliographical References

PE]See continuation sheet
Previous documentation on file (NPS):  N/A

L—_]preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67) Primary location of additional data:
has been requested N State historic preservation office .
[:] previously listed in the National Register [:]Other State agency N
[ )previously determined eligible by the National Register -[_JFederal agency
Ddesignated a National Historic Landmark DLocal government
E]recorded by Historic American Buildings DUniversity
Survey # ) [(Jother
[_____] recorded by Historic American Engineering Specify repository:
Record #

10. Geographical Data
Acreage of property 47 acres Moorestown, NJ Quad

UTM References

A |1,8] |5]0,5{4,7,0] [4,4]2,3]3,5,0§ B|L,8) [5]0,4{29 0) 4 4[2,30,5,0]
Zone  Easting Northing ) Zone  Easting Northing
cl1,8] |5]0,5|5,4,0] [4,4[2,4]5,7,0] D{1,8] |5]0,6]3,7,0) |4,4/24]6109

DSee continuation sheet

Verbal Boundary Description

See District map - Scale 1" = 200°'.

See continuation sheet

Boundary Justification

[x ] see continuation sheet

11. Form Prepared By
namel/title Carol A. Benenson, M.S.

organization _[KKFS, TInc. date __March 1, 1988;Revised June 1, 19§
street & number _219 N. Broad Street telephone _ (215)561-1050

city or town Philadelphia state PA zip code __19107
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Revival/Italianate brick store, and several twentieth-century commercial buildings. These include the 2-story
Spanish Colonial Revival brick row at 127-33 W. Main Street and the brick Commerical-style building at 5-9 W.
Main Street. Also contributing to the twentieth-century commercial character of Main Street are the Neoclassical
cast stone and brick bank designed by Philadelphia architects Davis, Dunlap, and Barney for the Moorestown
Trust Company (1926) and the Georgian Revival limestone bank designed by Simon & Simon, also of
Philadelphia, for the Burlirigton County Trust (1927) on the former site of the Coles Hotel.

Amidst the commercial and residential buildings along Main Street, churches serve as major architectural °
landmarks. At the intersection of Chester Avenue and Main Street, the Friends' Burial Ground occupies the
northwest corner where their first meetinghouse stood. Across the street stands the 1802 brick meetinghouse and
the larger one of 1897, designed by Walter Smedley, who previously had designed "Breidenhart" for Quaker
Samuel L. Allen. Further west and on the north side of Main Street is the Baptist Church, a stuccoed masonry
structure built by William LeConey in the 1870s. Romanesque Revival in style, the church features stained glass
windows and a heavy bracketed cornice. Connected by a covered walkway is its parsonage, a Flemish bond brick
Federal-style house. On the south side of Main Street, near Church Street, stands the Catholic church of Our
Lady of Good Counsel. This greystone and limestone church of transitional Gothic/Romanesque Revival design
was built in 1895 and given a Queen Anne style stone rectory in 1912 and a school in 1924. Diagonally across the
intersection of Main and Church Streets is Trinity Episcopal Church built in 1929 according to designs by
Philadelphia architects Karcher and Smith, who also designed Moorestown's Community House in 1926. This
architecturally significant complex of English country Gothic Revival stone buildings includes the church, chapel,
rectory, and parish house that are sited to form a courtyard. The church is of particular note for its attenuated
stone steeple pierced with dormers. Although not situated on Main Street, another church included in the district
is the turn-of-the-century Second Baptist Church on Mill Street.’

Just as Main Street has served as a focus for Moorestown's commercial and religious activities, it has also
provided a civic and social center. Town Hall, a brick building erected in 1812 and enlarged in 1888, is located in
the heart of "downtown" Moorestown at 40 E. Main Street. Within close proximity is the brick temple-fronted
Masonic Temple with its commercial first floor (1916) and the rural English Gothic-style Community House
designed by Karcher and Smith (1926). Further east along Main Street is the Grange Hall, a 2-story brick
building erected in 1886. Located on Chester Avenue, one block above Main Street is the Relief Engine House, a
Georgian Revival brick firehouse built in 1910.

The houses of Moorestown display a full spectrum of domestic architectural styles and a range of sophistication
from modest workers' housing to high-style architect-designed mansions. Main Street contains the most
heterogeneous mix of styles: Georgian, Federal, Greek Revival, Gothic Revival, Italianate, Second Empire,
Romanesque Revival, Carpenter Gothic, Queen Anne, Shingle Style, Colonial Revival, and Bungalow. It also
contains examples of early-twentieth-century suburban domestic architecture or "Comfortable Houses" that are
amalgamations of the Colonial Revival and Bungalow forms. Representative of Moorestown's eighteenth-century
architectural heritage are the stuccoed gambreled house at 141 E. Main Street (c.1720) and its neighbor the
Hessian House at 139 E. Main Street, stuccoed and scored and topped by a pedimented dormer (c.1744).
Surviving from the late eighteenth/early nineteenth century are the Greek Revivalized 1785 Joseph Newton House
at 285 W. Main; "The Greenleaf," being the ¢.1820 residence of Charles French at 28 E. Main; and a Flemish
bond Greek Revival house updated with a Victorian porch at 36 E. Main. Standing at the west end of the district
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are several modest mid-nineteenth-century vernacular frame dwellings (315, 317 322, 324, 328, and 336 W.
Main Street) while more stylish examples include the Downingesque Gothic Revival-style house at 155 E. Main
and the late Greek Revival/Italianate-style house with its cupola at the northwest corner of Main and Mill Streets.
Moving into the fourth quarter of the nineteenth-century are the Carpenter Gothic Crowell home at 237 E. Main
Street, the exceptionally well-preserved Second Empire-style house at 301 W. Main, the Queen Anne-style house
at 220 E. Main, and the Georgian Revival-style house attributed to architects Moses & King at 170 E. Main.

Other good examples of the architectural styles popularized in the late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries are
seen in the "Company Grounds," the entirely residential development north of the railroad or Third Street. Within -
this development is another house designed by Moses & King at 141 E. Oak Avenue (1900). Notable among the
Queen Anne-style houses are the half-timbered, Eastlake porch-fronted residence at the northwest corner of
Central and Chester Avenues; the hip-roofed, gable-fronted house at the southwest corner; and a gable-fronted
house embellished with bay windows and Eastlake porches at 45 E. Central Avenue. The Shingle Style is well
represented by 615 Chester Avenue, and an excellent example of a half-timbered Tudor Revival style is the W.W.
Sharpley-designed house at 515 Chester Avenue (1928). While many of these houses suggest the work of
architects, the majority of the houses in the "Company Grounds" appear to be builder-designed adaptations of the
Queen Anne, Colonial Revival, and American Four Square Colonial Revival. This last form also appears in a
cluster along West Main Street and on Prospect Avenue amidst other early-twentieth-century forms.

Bridging the homogeneous residential enclave north of the railroad (Third Street) and the heterogeneous
assemblage along Main Street is an area of predominantly workers' housing along Second and Third Streets.
Simple mid-nineteenth-century 2 1/2-story, 2-register frame dwellings are the norm on Second Street. The
district's only example of row houses, a Greek Revival frame row across from French's Avenue, is also present
on Second Street at 32-44. Similar to Second Street, Third Street is comprised of workers' housing, both singles
and doubles. These houses are sited very close to the railroad which was introduced through the center of Third
Street in 1867. French's Avenue, a small street perpendicular to Second and Third Streets, also contains small
workers' houses, many of which are enhanced with porches. Mill Street, which forms part of the district's
western boundary, is comprised of single and double workers' housing as well, typically resided and altered.
Strategically located at the intersection of Mill Street and the railroad (Third Street) is the largest industrial complex
in the district, namely, J.S. Collins & Son, Inc.'s hardware, feed, lumber, and millwork enterprise, housed in a
late-nineteenth-century board and batten building with a brick addition and various other period buildings. At Mill
and Second Street, another industrial resource survives. This 3-story stuccoed brick building was originally a
steam grist mill in the 1850s, then part of J.C. Hopkins, Jr.'s, Moorestown Roller Mills in the 1910s.

Although the majority of properties in the Moorestown Historic District are well preserved, the district has
witnessed inevitable alterations, demolition, and new construction over time. The alterations can be primarily
characterized as new siding, porch replacements, and storefront renovations. Most of the new construction is
located in the commercial Main Street core, particularly on W. Main Street, where a modern gas station,
restaurant, and convenience store have been introduced. However, these intrusions are not of a degree which
compromises the integrity of the district: of the 421 resources included in the district, 355 or 85% are
contributing. As a whole, the Moorestown Historic District continues to convey a distinct cultural and
architectural heritage.

See pages 7-4 to 7-70 for building inventory.
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W. MAIN STREET
10 - "John C. Hopkins House"

c.1879. 2 1/2-story, 5-register, Second Empire-style brick house on stone foundation with
paneled transomed center door. Portico supported on fluted Tuscan columns with
bracketed molded cornice topped by balustraded porch at second story level. 1/1 double
hung windows with brownstone sills, arched lintels, and paneled shutters. Second story
projecting bay with door to balcony flanked by 1/1 double hung windows with brownstone
lintels and sills, and louvered shutters. Slate mansard roof with undulating arched dormer,
1/1 double hung window with paneled pilasters and brackets, two other dormers with same
detail. East elevation: 1-story side porch with fluted columns and 1-story brick bay. 20th-
century rear brick addition. - Contributing.

14 .

c. 1945. 1-story aluminum sided commercial building with glazed and paneled door and
two tripartite bay windows. Second quarter 19th century 1-story clapboarded shed. - Non-
contributing.

c.1895. 2 1/2-story, frame (reclad in aluminum) cross-gabled and hip-roofed vernacular
house, 1/1 double hung windows with wood sills and thin wood lintels. Infilled first floor
porch. Pedimented dormer with brackets. Paired windows in gabled ends. Asphalt roof.
- Contributing.

22 - "Commerce Bank"

¢c.1975. Modern brick building with plate glass windows, double leaf door and standing |

seam metal roof. - Non-contributing.
30-32 - "Formerly Rectory for Our Lady of Good Counsel R.C. Church"

¢.1880. 2 1/2-story, 5-register Victorian vernacular frame house (reclad with aluminum).
Paneled door with 5-light sidelights and arched pedimented Colonial Revival portico
supported on Tuscan columns. Board and batten beneath portico. Two 2-story bays with
2/2 double hung windows and wood sills capped by gables with paired 1/1 double hung
windows and carved bargeboards. First floor tripartite window 2/2 double hung. Second
floor 2/2 double hung, all with wood lintels, three modern gabled dormers with 2/2 double
hung windows. Metal sheathed pent cornice supported by brackets. Slate mansard roof.
1-story aluminum sided addition with balustraded balcony and Colonial Revival entryway
with Tuscan columns. Glazed and paneled door, molded box cornice. - Contributing.

"Our Lady of Good Counsel R.C. Church"

Built 1895. Transitional Mid-Gothic Romanesque Revival Church with Romanesque form
and massing and Gothic detail. Grey stone church with two entries on street elevation.
Arched stone door surrounds, double leaf recessed paneled door with Gothic detail and
pointed arch infilled transom. At first story, two pointed arch windows, one 7-light infilled
with ventilator slats. At second story, clerestory of five pointed arch windows. Third
story multi-light stained glass rose window and two narrow lancet stained glass windows.
Belfry tower flanked by buttresses has ventilator opening with wood surround, Gothic
wood mullions, and fish-scale shingles. Crenellated tower with hipped slate roof. Gabled
slate roof over body of church with three small ventilation dormers and brownstone detail
along ridge line. Side elevations 7-light lancet windows separated by buttresses capped
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with flat stone. Recessed ground story entrances beneath gabled slate roofs. -
Contributing.

"Our Lady of Good Counsel School" - see Prospect Street.
118 - "Our Lady of Good Counsel Rectory"

1912. 3-story, 3-register Queen Anne-style dressed stone rectory, cross-gable on hipped
roof with half timbering and stucco on third floor. Pedimented portico of wood with
double leaf glazed and paneled door beneath 6-light transom. Half-timbering in gabled
end. Projecting register, first and second stories tripartite 9/1 double hung windows with
four 9/1 double hung windows in gable. Unornamented bargeboard with supports
underneath. Other register has paired 9/1 double hung windows dressed in stone and
surrounded in wood in gable. Paired single pane and multi-light windows. Bracketed
cornice and slate roof. West elevation: 1-story porch with slate roof, posts, and brackets.
2-story and 1-story frame rear additions. - Contributing.

122

c.1880. 2 1/2-story, 3-register, cross-gabled Gothic Revival frame house on brick
foundation. 1-story Colonial Revival porch supported on Tuscan columns with molded
box cornice and balustraded railing. Center 4-light door with infilled transom. Wood door
surround. 4/4 double hung windows with wood sills and lintels and paneled shutters on
first floor, louvered shutters on second floor. Pointed arch 6-light window in gable.
Molded box cornice supported on brackets, asphalt roof. East elevation: door with
glassed-in-entryway and 1-story pentagonal bay, 2-story and shed frame additions to rear.
- Contributing.

130

¢.1900. 2 1/2-story, 2-register vernacular clapboarded house on stone foundation with 1-
story Colonial Revival porch supported on Tuscan columns with turned post railing. Off-
center glazed and paneled door with sidelights and 1/1 double hung window with wood sill
and thin-lipped lintel. Second story tripartite bay, 1/1 double hung, thin-lipped lintel.
Closed gable end with tripartite stepped window with 1/1 double hung sash flanked by
single pane windows. - Contributing.

Main and S. Church Streets

¢.1970. Modern aluminum-sided 1 1/2-story gabled office. Asphalt on roof and in gables.
Colonial Revival arcade and 4-light transom over double leaf doors. - Non-contributing.

202

c.1895. 2 1/2 story, 3-register Shingle Style house with aluminum siding on first floor,
center glazed door with 5-light sidelights recessed beneath modern pedimented portico,
remainder of house clad in shake shingles. 1/1 double hung, tripartite 6/1 double hung and
4-light casement bay window fenestrate second story. Tripartite pyramidal roof dormer
with 8/1 double hung and 6-light windows clad in shake shingles. Two-story turret clad in
shingles with 1/1 double hung windows. Molded cornice. Asphalt hipped roof with
cross-gables on side elevation. Early-20th-century, 1 1/2-story gambrel roof vertical board
garage with asphalt clad pent. - Contributing.

AUG 22 10
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210

c.1870. 2 1/2-story, 3-register Second Empire-style clapboarded house. 1-story Colonial
Revival porch supported on Tuscan columns and brick piers with balustrade and molded
box cornice. Double leaf glazed and paneled door flanked by louvered shutters. First floor
2/2 double hung windows with wood sills and lintels and paneled shutters; second floor
same, only with louvered shutters. Molded box cornice supported on brackets. Three
pedimented dormers with carved window surrounds and 2/2 double hung windows.
Mansard roof clad with asphalt. West elevation: 2-story bay, Colonial Revival portico and
second story clapboarded addition, 2-story and shed additions in rear. - Contributing.

214

¢.1960. Modern brick and aluminum sided residence with sliding glass windows and 1-
story entryway and arcade. Molded cornice. Mansard roof clad in asphalt shingle. -
Non-contributing.

Block 218, Lot 24 (Friendly's)

¢.1970. 1 1/2-story modern brick commercial building with quoining at corners and closed
pediment with dentils at cornice. Asphalt roof and multi-light bow window. - Non-
contributing.

Block 218, Lot 22 (WAWA)

Late 20th century. 1 1/2-story brick store with quoining at corners. Vertical board in gable
ends. Shop front windows. Asphaltroof. - Non-contributing.

244

c.1900. 2 1/2-story, 3-register gable frame house reclad in aluminum. Asphalt sheathed
pent over first floor. Paneled door with 5-light transom and sidelights. 1/1 double hung
modern windows with metal louvered shutters. Windows paired in gable end. Slate roof
with fish-scale and shake shingles. West elevation: 2-story bay with 1/1 double hung
windows, and dormer sheathed in slate. 2-story rear additions clad in aluminum. -
Contributing.

250

¢.1900. 2 1/2-story, 2-register residence, clad in aluminum with stone foundation. Glazed
and paneled door with pent, leaded transom, and sidelights. Modern 1/1 double hung
windows, on first floor, 9/1 double hung windows with paneled shutters on second.
Asphalt hipped roof with widow's walk. West elevation: closed pedimented dormers with
pilasters and 1/1 double hung windows, 2 story bay with 9/1 double hung windows on
second story, 1-story bay with leaded glass windows. - Contributing.

254

c.1880. 2 1/2-story, T-shaped Queen Anne-style frame house on brick foundation with
side entry recessed behind porch with chamfered posts, ornamental brackets and bracing.
Multi-light door. First floor tripartite bays with 1/1 double hung windows and carved
wood surrounds, molded box cornices capped by fish-scale shingled roofs. Second story,
1/1 double hung windows paired in center with wood sills and lintels, some with louvered
shutters. Queen Anne decorative carved bargeboard and brackets and molded cornice.

£
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Flare gable. Asphalt clad roof. Side elevations: gabled dormers with pilasters and paneled
wood detail 1-story glassed-in porch on west end. - Contributing.

258

c.1860. 2 1/2-story, 3-register Gothic Revival clapboarded house with 1-story Queen
Anne porch on chamfered posts with carved wood brackets and bracing. Double leaf
glazed and paneled door with infilled transom. First floor, 1-story tripartite bay with 1/1
double hung windows, wood surrounds and molded box cornice supported by brackets.
Also 2/2 double hung sash with louvered shutters, wood sills and lintels. Paired arched
gable windows infilled with ventilators. Box cornice with plain bargeboard. Two, 2-story
additions to rear. - Contributing.

260

c.1915. 2 1/2-story, 3-register Colonial Revival stuccoed house on stone foundation. 1-
story Colonial Revival porch on Tuscan columns. Glazed and paneled door with 4-light
sidelights, 12/1 double hung window with wood lintel on first, 9/1 double hung on
second. Second floor tripartite bay. Overhanging roof with molded box cornice and two
pedimented dormers with 8/1 double hung windows. Asphalt roof and additions to rear.
c.1915. 1 1/2-story frame barn with hipped asphalt roof. - Contributing.

266

c.1915. 2 1/2-story, 3-register, American Four Square Colonial Revival frame house
(reclad with aluminum) on stone foundation, 1-story Colonial Revival porch on Tuscan
columns with stone piers and a turned balustrade, center glazed door and 1/1 double hung
modern windows with wood surrounds. Asphalt hipped roof with hipped dormers, 1/1
double hung windows. 1-story porte cochere extending on west side. 1-story addition to
rear. - Contributing.

. 274 - "Elisha Barcklow House"

¢.1765 with 1795 and 1921 additions. Log under older 1765 section, now aluminum sided
Colonial Revival porch with glazed and paneled door, 1/1 double hung sash. Paneled
shutters, first floor; louvered shutters, second; pedimented dormers with 2/2 double hung
windows, asphalt roof. 1795 portion, paneled door with 4-light transom, Flemish bond
brick with glazed headers, 9/9 double hung windows with paneled shutters first floor;
louvered second; molded box cornice, asphalt roof. 1921 addition aluminum sided with
screened-in porch on Tuscan piers, 6/6 double hung windows. Asphalt roof, rear
additions to all parts. - Contributing.

286 - "'The Hillman Mansion"

c.1890. Colonial Revival, 2 1/2-story, 3-register, frame house, now aluminum sided with
1-story wraparound pedimented porch with wrought iron railing. Brick foundation.
Paneled door with side lights and pilasters. 1/1 double hung modern windows with
paneled shutters first floor, louvered at second floor. Second floor central Palladian
window with wood surrounds and pilasters. Hipped roof, asphalt clad with pedimented
dormers, and 8/<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>